O o o B W

W W WwWwWwWwWwWwNRNRNNNRNNRNNRNERPRR@R [ |3 (@ 2 |2 @2

TIMPANOGOS SPECIAL SERVICE DISTRICT
ADMINISTRATIVE BOARD MEETING MINUTES E@WE

August 17,2017 6:00 p.m. Conference Room

Board Members
Present: Mark Johnson *David Bunker Mark Christensen

Brian Braithwaite *Lynn Walker Craig White

Tracy Wallace Sullivan Love Chandler Goodwin
Excused: Commissioner Bill Lee Chris Condie Mack Straw

Dale Ihrke
District Staff: Jon Adams, District Manager,

Shannon Hansen, Human Resource
David Barlow, District Engineer
Danette Smith, Board Secretary
Joe Martin, CPA

Others: Ken Spiers, Bowen Collins & Associates
Brandon Wyatt, Bowen Collins & Associates
Brandon Heidelberger, Brown & Caldwell

Call to Order
Mark Johnson, Board Chair, called the meeting to order. 6:02 p.m.

Public Comment
There was no public comment.

Approval of Minutes
1. Approval of the July 20, 2017 Administrative Board Meeting Minutes

Craig White made a motion to approve the minutes from the July 20, 2017 Administrative Board Meeting.
Brian Braithwaite seconded the motion. Those voting “Aye” — Mark Johnson, Mark Christensen, Brian
Braithwaite, Craig White, Tracy Wallace, Sullivan Love, and Chandler Goodwin. The motion passed with a
unanimous vote.

Consent Calendar

1. Settlement Agreement between Timpanogos Special Service District and Edge Homes

Jon said this is the same agreement sent out to the board by the Board Chair. There were no language changes; it
is what both sides agreed to. It needs to be approved tonight. Mark Christensen said he was happy with the
settlement agreement. Mark Christensen said the city received formal notice on July 27" that they were to revise
impact fees, his city was prevented from issuing building permits for about a week while they reprogrammed their
system. Mark Christensen said in the future, if fees are changed, there needs to be time given to enact those changes
and reprogram on their side.

Sullivan Love said Vineyard had a question on the multi-family designation at 65%, is there a clear definition of
what multi-family is. There are townhomes that are attached that are three bedrooms, three and a half baths. They
are going to have the same impact a single-family dwelling will, as far as sewer discharge. Is that to be interpreted

-1-



W o N OB W N

W W L WwwWwWwWwiNRNBNRDLRNRNRNIERRR |2 1 3 2 2 B
8@%&3&%&538u:ooumm.bwwn—-ouoooqmm.bwmn—-ou:ooﬂmmbwmuc

by each entity? Jon said that is how it is now. Jon said we talked with Todd Godfrey and tried to get a definition;
their logic is that the cities have been determining that, so how have they previously determined it? There was no
definition given because the cities have decided what was multi-unit. Jon said he thought it would be very beneficial
to be standardized throughout the District but it never has been. It would probably take a meeting with the District
and the home builders to say what is multi-unit. Brian Braithwaite said there is some common sense to it, there is an
issue of what the impact is to the system. Jon said some cities have looked at whether there were common walls, if
they are two-bedroom three bath and above, they may have been classified as an ERU. Brian said he would look at it
as how does it impact the sewer system, not what the structure above looks like. Jon said you have to look at what
the capability of the discharge flow is. They have never been standardized between the cities, so it also impacts their
ability to plan for their own system. Mark Johnson said he thought it would be appropriate for the District to
establish their own definition, because it is going to change between cities.

Brian said we may get hit with another lawsuit because the contractors are going to come in and they will be
treated differently by each city; ultimately it comes back to the District and we need to define how we are going to do
it. The input from the cities is critical, we need to have some consistency. We are the ones charging and we cannot
let them make arbitrary decisions.

*David Bunker and Lynn Walker arrived. 6:13 p.m.

Jon said we are charging per ERU and the city determines the ERU equivalency. Jon said right now we charge a
rate per ERU, we do not determine that ERU equivalency. The city is the permitting authority, they do the review,
calculate, and submit to us and we accept what they give us. Mark Christensen said this is a great topic for us to
include in our Impact Fee Study and look for some clarification amongst all the member entities. Mark C. suggested
we slug this out as we go through our update. Mark Johnson suggested that this be an item of discussion at the next
Engineering Committee meeting.

Mark Christensen made a motion to approve the Settlement Agreement as presented tonight. Chandler
Goodwin seconded the motion. Those voting “Aye” — Mark Johnson, David Bunker, Mark Christensen,
Brian Braithwaite, Lynn Walker, Craig White, Tracy Wallace, Sullivan Love, and Chandler Goodwin. The
motion passed with a unanimous vote.

Financial Report

Joe Martin presented financials to the Board and explained the financial report to new board member Mark
Christensen. Joe said there was a classification error on the budget side; in office expense, budget to actual, we had
categorized the asset management budget in there originally and then we moved it into professional services, it did
not get moved in this version. Joe said there is a new set of financial statements in dropbox, the newest version is
correct. Joe said there is a new report that shows where we are at with our impact fees. When we spend money out of
our general account for items qualified to pay with impact fees, we track that. This report shows how much we owe
ourselves back for what we have spent on impact fee qualified expenses, because we haven’t brought enough impact
fees to cover qualified projects. Counting the $24 million we paid in the settlement, which was related to impact fees,
we owe ourselves back about $36 million. The report reconciles all the impact fee money we brought in and the
impact fee qualified money that has been spent and shows where that balance is.

Action Item
1. Adoption of Resolution on Revised Impact Fees
The District Board needs to adopt a resolution on the District Impact Fee Revision that was effective on July 26,
2017. Jon said we asked legal counsel, Todd Godfrey, to prepare this. He took a different approach and changed
the sections of our existing Impact Fee Enactment to reflect the changes needed. [f you look at the Amended Impact
Fee Enactment Resolution 2017-01, the second paragraph:

“Whereas, the Board of the District, pursuant to the settlement agreement reached in that certain case entitled
Edge Homes, et.al v. Timpanogos Special Service District, Case No. 150400453, the District Board desires to reduce
the impact fee charged pending the adoption of a new Impact Fee Facilities Plan and Impact Fee Analysis pursuant to
the provision of Utah Code Ann. Section 11-36a-101, et seq.”

.



W e ~N O U B W=

DD DWW W W W W WWWwWWMRNNNNRNNRNRRNNIERIRRRR |2 B B B B
@gﬁgaﬁwmn—-owmwmmbwms—\ommumm#wwr—-ommummbwmn—xo

Jon said Todd Godfrey wanted to show that we did this as per the settlement, and when we get done with our new
impact fee analysis, we will have a new resolution that is collective of everything. David Bunker said we are not
reducing the impact fee pending anything, and we should just put a period after charged and then come back and redo
the impact fees. Jon said he agreed, after reading this he sees that we are reducing our fee, pending an impact fee
analysis and it is not dependent on that. David Bunker asked if we could change the word pending. Jon said he
thinks we could. David Bunker said we could change it to say, “reduce the impact fee charged with the intention to
consider the adoption of new Impact Fee Facilities Plan and Impact Fee Analysis pursuant to the code.” Jon said
you could put a period after charged and then the board will perform a new Impact Fee Facilities Plan and Impact Fee
Analysis pursuant to the code. Jon said if the board wants to go ahead and adopt it conditioned upon the language
change, he does not think there will be trouble talking Todd into that.

Mark Christensen said he always gets a little nervous rewriting something that was drafted by the attorneys; he is
skimming through the impact fee code to try and figure out what Todd was trying to do. Mark C. said he is
concerned because an impact fee can only be charged on certain parameters, he thinks Todd is trying to point towards
that parameter. Mark C. said he is not sure if amending it on the fly is going to have any unintended consequences,
and at this point he trusts Todd’s original draft; if we need to change it contingent upon these questions we could
always go back and correct that. Mark said he is hesitant to amend a legal document without Todd Godfrey present
to defend his logic. Brian Braithwaite said he agrees. David Bunker said why don’t we leave off pending because it
really isn’t pending anything other than the court case. Brian said he does not know what the Utah code says but if
those are the requirements that you have to have then it is pending that. Mark C. said he is probably trying to tie
back to a section of code that says if any section of the impact fee is determined to be invalid then you are to reduce
your fee and move forward in that direction. Jon said the meaning in Todd’s mind would be “until” for pending. We
desire to reduce the fee based on the settlement until the adoption of a new fee. Mark Johnson said he tends to agree
with Mark Christensen.

Brian Braithwaite made a motion to accept and approve the Amended Impact Fee Enactment, Resolution
2017-01 as presented. Lynn Walker seconded the motion.

Mark Christensen said he would like to respect the questions that were brought up and we could take those back
to Todd Godfrey, to see if it legitimately needs to be looked at and changed, otherwise we should move forward.
Mark Johnson said we could put that in the motion. Brian said it is good dialogue, but as a board we can ask Todd
Godfrey to come back, but having it in a motion does not buy us anything. We as a board can direct Todd to come
back and address that concern. David Bunker said if we accept that motion and vote on it, there is no reason for
Todd Godfrey to come back. We could ask him to come back, it doesn’t change anything. Brian said he thinks we
ask him to clarify it and see that the wording does have a reasonable impact to this; if it does then we ought to change
it. Jon said he can contact him and get an explanation then you have a decision whether you want him to come back.
David Bunker said the appropriate thing would be to table it if we are going to try and get more information to
determine if it is the right thing. Mark Johnson said the question exists that if we pass this tonight can we change it
or not. Brian said as a governmental entity we can always change anything. Mark Christensen said because we
have made the determination that our impact fee is going down, we need something from this body accepting that
new impact fee and putting it in place. Mark Johnson agreed and called for a roll call vote on the motion.

Chandler Goodwin - Aye, Sullivan Love - Aye, Tracy Wallace - Aye, Craig White - Aye, Mark Johnson -
Aye, Lynn Walker - Aye, Brian Braithwaite - Aye, Mark Christensen — Aye, David Bunker - Nay. The motion
passed with a majority vote.

Communication

1. Asset Management Progress Report and Board Update — Brown and Caldwell

Brandon Heidelberger, Brown and Caldwell, was present to give an update and presentation to the board.
Brandon thanked District staff for all their input into the project. Brandon said they had gone through and done a lot
of the initial work for the asset management plan, as far as identifying assets, their condition and prioritizing. They
are starting to come up with a list of projects based from the asset management plan and it is a good time to meet
with the board and show their findings and get input.



W o ~N O LB W N e

BB W W W W WWWWWWNRNNRNRNDRNRNRNRNERR R 2 2 2 2
@gﬁgaﬁar%r—\ouooowcnm.bwmnaoLooowmm-bwwn—tomooummnwwn—xo

Brandon said they start by looking at consequence of failure: looking at risks and where the assets are on the risk
profile, and trying to identify what facilities and equipment are critical to support the District levels of service.
Condition assessment work was done to identify where the assets were at as far as their condition and useful life to
come up with a list of rehabilitation and replacement needs (R&R), and from that they develop a CIP.

Brandon said right now, they are on schedule. They have done the levels of service, the criticality and had several
workshops with District staff. They have spent a lot of time looking at condition assessment, with District staff
giving up a lot of their time to go through the plant and the collections system to identify areas of concern. Brandon
said coming up there will be long term planning, including the replacement planning model. A big part of asset
management is evaluating risk; assets are going to fail eventually and this effort is to put a plan in place to repair and
replace the District’s assets. They go through a process to determine what assets are most critical and what deserve
their attention. They do that through looking at a risk profile, which is consequence of failure (what happens if that
asset fails) and likelihood of failure (condition). Brandon said the assets that are in the red are high risk (high
consequence of failure, high likelihood of failure). Those projects we want to move back into the green and orange,
through either a project or stepped up maintenance plan to address the shortfalls in those assets.

There were two workshops, one geared to the plant and the other one geared to the collection system. They are
treated a little different because the plant is more vertical, where the collections system is horizontal. They looked at
criteria such as public safety, regulatory compliance, cost of failure, impact to the public, and repair time. They
assigned waiting and values to all of the District’s assets here in the plant to identify which ones were the most
important. Some of the more critical assets in the plant are the headworks, influent pumps, backup generator
systems, blowers, UV System, odor control, and dewatering. On the collections side, they looked at crossings, like
pipe crossing railroads, streams, freeways. They looked at proximity to life safety, such as hospitals, police stations,
fire stations. They also looked at pipe size and material, and has it been rehabilitated or does it need to be
rehabilitated.

After the criticality workshop, and prioritizing what assets are most important, they start looking at condition.
Everything is captured electronically, to track where the asset is, it has a GIS database associated with it. This will
help as the District as they move forward and purchase the new CMMS system. Brandon said they looked at about
30% of the available CCTV and about 53 manholes. On the plant side, there were about 250 assets that were
reviewed. There is draft report in progress. Some of the defects were infiltration, manholes, deterioration from
hydrogen sulfide. On the Dry Creek Lift Station, there are some capacity concerns, and corrosion issues, the Boat
Harbor Lift Station has some performance issues with the pumps, circulation problems, and confined space and
access issues.

In the plant, there is some equipment that is no longer supported, the blowers which the District is planning to
replace. The influent pumps have some liability and performance issues. The older portion of the plant on the east
side, there is some older equipment getting worn out. There is a lot of buried infrastructure in the plant like utility
water piping, and the drive mechanisms for the clarifiers. Brandon said we do not know the condition of those, but
recommend a continual maintenance and inspection of the equipment that we cannot see. Out in the effluent area,
the UV System has some failure prone areas in the cabling, that has to do with the HVAC and overheating of the
cables. Obviously, this system serves a critical purpose as far as the disinfection. Jon said the issue is the cables in
that area; it was put in and passed by a vendor representative as a correct installation. We have had issues with it,
they came back out and a different representative said it isn’t installed right. There are some heating issues and how
it affects the performance of the equipment

Brandon said some that are in the high-risk zone are assets that need to be addressed as part of the short-term CIP.
The blowers are obviously having some performance problems, have a high likelihood of failure and there is trouble
getting parts. If we replace the blowers with new ones and do some improvements to the controls, the intent is to
move those down to where it is a lower consequence of failure and good condition. It is about lowering the risk.
Others in the high-risk zone are the influent pumps, and UV System, critical assets that we are going to want to
address. Brandon said they will get to the short-term CIP and some of those projects this year. Brandon said on the
collections system, some of those higher risk projects will be addressed through a rehabilitation or replacement
project.



W o ~N o B WM

W W W W wWwWwWwwwNnNNNRNNNNRNNRNRRRRRRR R R
ggoﬁﬁgﬁﬁa3ﬁg({gmummbwwuommqmmhwwn—:ommumm.bwma—\o

On the rehabilitation and replacement planning, one of those listed as short term, high priority is the relocation of
the Dry Creek Lift Station. That is already on the CIP plan, and can be confirmed that condition wise, it should be
replaced. The Boat Harbor Lift Station, there is a project to do some retrofit, the odor control needs to be replaced
and there are some other things there to address as well. There is some structural rehab on some of the larger
diameter RCP pipe, and they recommend starting to plan for manhole rehabilitation. There are portions of the
collections system that are currently unable to access. They are through some very wet farmlands and there are some
access issues; they have not been inspected in quite a while. Brandon said they recommend doing an advanced
inspection, which is putting in a multi sensor tool on either end to collect some condition information on those
pipelines.

Brandon said as they are going through with plant staff, they come up with a whole list of issues and problems
that can be addressed. To develop a project, they take all those projects based on area or need and look at grouping
projects to come up with larger capital projects. Some of the plant projects that were identified for the short-term
CIP, headworks, influent pumps (reliability issues that need to be addressed), bioreactors (improvements to air
control), blowers, clarifiers (make more flexible, add redundancy, plan for retrofit), RAS pump station (replacing
older equipment), dewatering building, UV system retrofit, switchgear in Generator building, and addressing solids
disposal. Short term projects are called high priority. These projects scored high in consequence and likelihood of
failure. Those are the ones we want to address and move down to a lower risk area. Long term projects are going to
be mostly capacity and regulatory driven, like upsizing pipes, adding more process units, making changes necessary
for the nutrient regulation. Short term projects we are looking about 5 years, long term projects 25-30 years.

Brandon handed out a spreadsheet that showed, project name, scheduling, timing and costs. Mark Christensen
said contingency projects that double the total project budget, do not seem like a contingency. Brandon said they are
large, and we are not sure if those are ever going to come to pass, but we put a number in a spot on the CIP so they
are out there if it comes to pass. The larger one of $45 million is related to nutrients. Right now, there is proposed
phosphorus limit of 1 mg/L, most of what is in the plant is ready to meet that limit with a few modifications. If that
limit drops to .1 mg/L, you would need a whole addition to the treatment process to treat down to that level. That is
what that $45 million represents. Mark Christensen asked how we are planning for that. Brian said part of it is we
are going to push back as we do not believe it is realistic for them to go to that point. We are working on getting
proof that it is not realistic. That is ten times reduction, it could be anywhere from not doing that reduction at all to
some subset of that. They have no evidence to justify it at this point. Mark Christensen said he thinks the algae
blooms are going to drive that political discussion for us. Brian said except the algae blooms are happening in places
that have no wastewater treatment going into it, so it makes it a tough battle.

Mark Christensen said he would like to understand how we plan because that looks like a really big number. Jon
said there will be some time if the limits are imposed, there is going to be an implementation period. There are
monies in there for optimization of phosphorus treatment system, we could add some chemical addition. We are
going to focus on the 1 mg/L now and make sure we can meet that, with our studies and being involved politically,
we will have plenty of time to know where that is going. We are saying let’s do the science, which we are
participating in and donating to, to see if we can get some realistic numbers. We believe, based on what we are
seeing, that the .Img/L is not going to stop the algae blooms and there should be some accountability on the
regulators part. The concession we have gotten so far is DWQ has postponed dropping the limit lower than 1.0 mg/L
until 2030, so we bought some time there. Brian said if we see it becoming more real and our intent to push back
isn’t having any impact, and the residents in this area are happy with it then it will come. Jon said if you read the
newspaper, you could have the public saying, who may not understand the science or really care to, we do not want
those algal blooms and we’ll spend the money. The blooms may never go away but it could be driven politically and
they could make that decision in other commissions and boards. Mark Christensen said it could be made at a
national level, outside of our control of pushing back. Mark Christensen said there is another approach, which he is
sure the board has looked at, being proactive, we could say to the state “you want to change your limits, let us be
your pilot program, give us $45 million and we will happily implement and see what that does™.

Brandon said while we are on the topic of nutrients, some of these projects and process modifications we can
make before to reliably meet that 1 mg/L. There is the aeration system upgrade related to the blowers, wasting on
some of the secondary clarifiers, chemical feed which a lot of plant are putting in as a back up to their process,

=B



O e N O B W N e

DD B W oW oW ow oW W W wWRNRNNNRNRRNDRDGNRR R R 2 2 2 |2 B2
gggﬁgaﬁaNHOLDoo-\IChU'!-waI—\OLoooxlmm.bwwr—!otoooﬂcnm-bwwl—to

making some adjustments in the bioreactors, and effluent filtration which is the big $45 million to add effluent
filtration to treat down to . Img/L.

Brandon said the next steps would be detailed costs, there is a draft CIP which was given to the board and
represents the high priority projects, there will be a long-term CIP which shows some of the capacity projects and
there will be final report summarizing CIP prioritization and reporting on replacement planning model.

Brian said he is glad to see the due diligence that has been put into this. We have the 1-2 year really well, but the
real benefit is coming from seeing how that projection in 5-10 years, how close it is and we can set our budgets and
rates more accurately.

2. Manager’s Report

Jon said the Utah Lake Technical Meeting was cancelled, but it was rescheduled. We did get a position on the
technical committee; David Barlow is Jon’s alternate. They are in the process of putting together a science panel.
Jon said we are trying to come to a consensus on how this science should be conducted and a make up of the
committees, has put them back a while; there probably will not be much happen before the beginning of the year.

Jon said as part of the activities to educate the legislators, the Wasatch Front Water Quality Council, they are
organizing an education day where they are taking them out on the lake, and they have asked if we could host that
here. That would take place on September 13", David Bunker asked if there was anything we could do to make
sure those representatives get our message. Jon said we had an advertising firm help us create a one-page summary
sheet. Jon said if the board members could encourage legislators they know to attend to get the exposure that would
help. David Bunker asked if the Wasatch Front Water Quality Council has their own agenda or would we be able to
give input. Jon said we would give an overview and presentation of how this treatment plant works. They are going
to come on a bus, hear our presentation, and then get on the boats. We have folks from different POTWs that are
going to present, and have invited others that are more recreation minded and have some other options for cleaning
up the lake.

Jon said the National Association of Clean Water Agencies (NACWA) are the policy making group. The board
has supported Jon being on their board. NACWA has selected Salt Lake City to hold their annual Leadership Retreat
and Workshop for 2017, on October 24-26. Jon said NACWA has asked him and another director from Region VIII
to help with conference preparation. Jon said October 26" there is going to be a panel discussion where they invite
key people from around the country and region, which will be open for everyone, if board members can attend that
would be great.

We were going to discuss the information handed out at last board meeting that came from the State Auditor, but
have decided to combine that with board member training. That is tentatively scheduled for September 7%; Legrand
Bitter could not make it and rescheduled for September 14", Jon said Leland Myers do that and they would be
available sooner if the board wants to do that. The Board discussed dates and Jon said he would get back to the
board.

The plant was in compliance for the month of July. The YTD phosphorus averages have been included with those
numbers per Mark Christensen’s request. Jon said we are over the lmg/L, but those are some of the inconsistencies
because of some of the bottle necks and learning to run the system. Jon said we are confident that we can get that
below the Img/L and do it biologically. The chemical backup would be good because you could turn the chemical
addition on to make sure you did not exceed your average. It is a yearly average, not a monthly average. Jon said if
the state says the limit is 1 m/L, but we are going to set a daily maximum, that is a killer, even though our average
could be 1 mg/L or less we could have days over that. In our bioreactors we have many diffusers and many feet of
pipe in the air system; from what we have seen it looks like they have glued about every other joint because they
blow apart and we have to take the basin down. When you take that basin down you lose phosphorus removal.
Those are the type of things we are going to be working on.

Sullivan asked about renting a grinder. Jon said yes, we looked into renting a grinder, we also received an initial
amount on the claim that we are disputing because it looked like a repair estimate rather than a purchase. David
Barlow has been on the phone with Duratech because we are saying the amount we got from the adjuster came from
this Duratech representative. We are saying when we go online to find a model same year and size, you do not have
anything near that price. The adjuster has already said they would review it again. We are eligible to have grinding

.



L oo o B W

NN N R R R e
WMo R O WOoSNMWm R WNRE O

fees covered, now they are trying to get a check so they do not have to pay the grinding fees. The check needs to
another $100 thousand and we could go find a grinder. Mark Johnson asked how grinding is being done now. Jon
said when we closed green waste, we had some stock piled and did not get any more waste in. We did open back up
at the first part of July and now we are getting to the point we will have to start grinding in the next couple of weeks.
We would contract somebody if we have not settled.

Mark Christensen said he had a question that ties back to what Brandon, Brown and Caldwell, was saying about
that $45 million effluent filtration project. Mark said since we are redoing our impact fees, and it was stated at the
last Finance Committee meeting that we have about 30 mg capacity, and using about 18 mg; if we think of this
project rather than fight and hold off. we amend our standards to that standard preemptively, then it becomes about a
60/40 split on the impact fee. If we set that standard and that project into year 6 from where we are at, and made that
project one we are actively funding and pursuing, rather than becoming a 100% a deficiency at the end of our
capacity cycle; if we added it in now, 40% of the new growth would be paying for that filtration capacity to reach
that new standard. That may be something we want to consider and Jon may want to look at because 40% being built
into new growth and impact fees might not be a bad concept for us to consider. If that is the standard that we are
providing service to that could be something we could contemplate. Jon said he is sure that in the next 10 years that
percentage will change. The new growth percentage will most likely increase.

Closed Meeting
There was no closed meeting.

Adjourn: David Bunker made a motion to adjourn. Lynn Walker seconded the motion. All present
“Aye”. Meeting adjourned. 7:30 p.m.



